Portage Park District

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
May 8, 2023, 6:00 pm

PPD Operations Center

8505 Nicodemus Road

Shalersville, OH 44266

DISTRICT
Agenda
1. Roll Call
2. Public Comment: Note: members of the public wishing to speak are asked to sign in. Comments will be

limited to two minutes per person.

Approve minutes of the April 2023 Regular Meeting

Presentation and approval of Financial Statement: April 2023 MTD and YTD Budget Report and Cash
Balance Reports.

Executive Director/Staff Update

Other Information/Briefing Items/Policy Updates:

a. Ranger policies: Community Engagement; Investigation of Employee Misconduct

Old Business and approval of action items: None

New Business and approval of action items:
a. RESOLUTION 2023-33: Approve April 2023 Expenditures with Then and Now certificates

b. RESOLUTION 2023-34: Renew MOU with Portage Park District Foundation

¢. RESOLUTION 2023-35: Authorize Engineering Scope change to Ravenna Road Bridge project with
Portage County Engineer

d. RESOLUTION 2023-36: Authorize new job positions and descriptions

Executive Session: To discuss the sale or acquisition of real estate and the hiring or compensation of
personnel

10. Adjourn






Portage Park District

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
April 10, 2023 6:00 pm

PPD Operations Center

8505 Nicodemus Road

Shalersville, OH 44266

DISTRICT

Minutes
President of the Board Commissioner Kurt Ruehr called the meeting to order at 6:09 pm

1. Roll Call: Commissioners present: Commissioner Charles Engelhart, Commissioner Tom Hrdy,
Commissioner Kurt Ruehr, Commissioner Renee Ruchotzke. Commissioner Allan Orashan had an
excused absence. Staff Present: Christine Craycroft, Executive Director; Craig Alderman, Operations
Manager; Kevin Nietert, Chief Ranger; Eric Seachrist, Office Manager; Holly Stoneberg, Education
Program Coordinator.

1. Public Comment: None

2. Approve minutes of the March 13, 2023 Regular Meeting: Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second by
Englehart, the minutes were approved with Ruchotzke abstaining from the vote. (JE 2023-20)

3. Approve minutes of the March 17, 2023 Emergency Meeting: Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second
by Hrdy, the minutes were approved with Englehart abstaining from the vote. (JE 2023-21)

4. Presentation and approval of Financial Statement: March 2023 MTD and YTD Budget Report and Cash
Balance Reports: Craycroft asked if Seachrist wanted to add any comments to the report. Seachrist
indicated the expenditures were 15% of the annual budget, in comparison to a linear projection of 25%
and that spending was on track. Hrdy asked about the high figure for auditor, treasurer and DRETAC
fees. Seachrist stated that those were only paid twice a year, so it would seem high at this point in the
year. Upon a motion by Hrdy, seconded by Engelhart the March reports were approved. (JE 2023-22).

5. Executive Director/Staff Update:

a. Craycroft reported that the Camp Spelman Conservation Easement has been recorded. The
property was transferred to the Lake Spelman Preservation Society on April 3. Notifications of
the transfer were mailed to community partners.

b. Craycroft noted that the District did not receive bids for Brady Switch Tower repairs.
Coordinating efforts with the architect and Building Department are being made for final
modifications prior to rebidding.

c. Letters of support for the next phases of Headwaters Trail from the County Commissioners
and Mantua Township Trustees have been received. The District is planning to submit a
Clean Ohio Trails grant application April 17 for Headwaters Trail Phase VIl from Chamberlain
to Diagonal Roads. Meanwhile, the Carlton property survey and purchase agreement is in
progress.

d. With respect to operations, Operations Manager Craig Alderman reported that weekly
monitoring of Camp Spelman dam has continued according to ODNR approved Operations
Maintenance and inspection manual. He noted that the dam at Trail Lake follows a different
protocol.




Alderman reported that he is working with ODOT and the Village of Garrettsville to continue
an on-road signage project on Route 88, near the library.

As Natural Areas Manager Bob Lange was absent, no report was presented on Natural Areas,
however Director Craycroft noted that they are evaluating natural areas personnel needs in
response to the resignation of Tomas Curtis.

Education Program Coordinator Holly Stoneberg reported that the District’s calendar is near to
full for public engagement activities. Craycroft noted that the Summer Program Guide will be
printed near the end of April.

Chief Ranger Kevin Nietert reported that he had visited the Shelly property in Shalersville to
assess the amount of trespassing that may be taking place there. He noted there are ATVs,
fishermen and others, none of whom seemed intimidating to the public.

Other Information/Briefing Items/Policy Updates:

a. Ranger policies — Chief Ranger Nietert reported on the latest two policies he had submitted for
adoption by resolution later in the meeting. Nietert stated that the situations the policies
address are unlikely to occur, but that the policies are good ones, vetted by both the Ohio
Collaborative and Portage County’s Prosecutor’s Office.

Old Business and approval of action items

None

New Business and approval of action items:

Approve March 2023 Expenditures with Then and Now certificates: Seachrist gave a brief
explanation of the circumstances for the three Then & Now certificates. Upon a motion by Hrdy and
second by Engelhart, RESOLUTION 2023-23 was unanimously approved.

Appreciation to Tomas Curtis for service: Upon a motion by Hrdy and second by Ruchotzke,
RESOLUTION 2023-24 was unanimously approved.

Appreciation to Andrea Metzler for service: Upon a motion by Engelhart and second by Hrdy,
RESOLUTION 2023-25 was unanimously approved.

Authorize Clean Ohio Trails application for Headwaters Trail VIli: Upon a motion by Hrdy and second
by Englehart, RESOLUTION 2023-26 was unanimously approved.

Authorize First Energy Tree Clearing Easement Chagrin Headwaters Preserve: Upon a motion by
Hrdy and second by Englehart, RESOLUTION 2023-27 was unanimously approved.

Approve a Cash Advance to the Headwater Trail Fund: Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second by
Hrdy, RESOLUTION 2023-28 was unanimously approved.

Authorize Chagrin Headwaters License Agreement for encroachment: Upon a motion by Englehart
and second by Hrdy, RESOLUTION 2023-29 was unanimously approved.

Adopt Ohio Collaborative Ranger Policies: Upon a motion by Englehart and second by Hrdy,
RESOLUTION 2023-30 was unanimously approved.

Amend Resolution for the Carlton Purchase and Sale Agreement: Upon a motion by Englehart and
second by Ruchotzke, RESOLUTION 2023-31 was unanimously approved.




j- Approve purchase of printing services: Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second by Englehart,

RESOLUTION 2023-32 was approved, with a vote as follows:

Commissioner Engelhart
Commissioner Hrdy
Commissioner Orashan
Commissioner Ruchotzke
Commissioner Ruehr

Yes

No
Absent
Yes
Yes

Executive Session: Ruchotzke motioned to enter into executive session to discuss matters of real estate.

The motion was seconded by Englehart. The vote was as follows:

Commissioner Engelhart
Commissioner Hrdy
Commissioner Orashan
Commissioner Ruchotzke
Commissioner Ruehr

Yes
Yes
Absent
Yes
Yes

The Board entered executive session at 7:09 pm. (JE 2023-23).

Commissioner Englehart motioned to exit executive session, seconded by Hrdy. The vote was as

follows:

Commissioner Engelhart
Commissioner Hrdy
Commissioner Orashan
Commissioner Ruchotzke
Commissioner Ruehr

Yes
Yes
Absent
Yes
Yes

The Commissioners exited executive session at 8:10 pm (JE 2023-24).

adjourned at 8:11 pm.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF we hereunto set our hands,

7

L,

Adjourn: Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second by Engelhart, the meeting was unanimously

5-%

, 2023

Yt

/Kurt Rueﬁ’r President of the Board

Cf’irlstlne Craycro/ft Executive Director






PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT
Month to Date and Year To Date Budget & Cash Balance Report for April 2023

GENERAL FUND

BEGINNING AUDITOR'S CASH BALANCE  April 1 s 3,402,372.94

April YTD Percentage
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION REVISED BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL Collected of Budget
152000 Contract Services 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
15300 Fees 100.00! 0.00 0.00 0.0%
160000 Gifts & Donations 6,650.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 751.59%
192400 State Aid/Subsidy 85,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
General Program Revenues subtotal 92,750.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 53.9%
200300 Real Estate Homestead Rollback {from State) 32,744.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
221000 Real Estate Tax 1,791,023.00 970,510.26 0.00 54.2%
224000 Manufactured Homes Property Tax 0.00 7,319.50 0.00
230000 Interest 10,000.00 15,294.46 6,225.49 152.9%
241000 Oll & Gas Leases 10,000.00 8,953.96 1,857.94 89.5%
243000 Credit Card Incentives 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
250000 Refunds and Reimbursements 0.00 11,551.92 2,223.34
270000 Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 310.51 310.51
General Operations Revenue 1,844,767.00] 1,013,940.61 10,617.28 55.0%
ISIBTOTM. REVENUES 1,937,517.00 | 1,063,940.61 60,617.28 54.9%
2022 Cash Carryover 2,B97,413,62 100.0%

A rcentage
EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES REVISED BUDGET | YTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL Expended of Budget
311200 FT Employee Salaries 640,000.00 214,988.90 47,521.20 33.6%
311300 PT Employee Salaries 100,000.00 24,788.43 5,667.46 24.8%
312100 Sick Leave Conversion 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
313000 Overtime 2,000.00 0.00 0.00/ 0.0%
314000 Retirement 50,000.00 2,643.02 2,643.02 5.3%
321010 PERS 103,600.00 33,568.87 7,446.42 32.4%
321200 Medicare 10,730.00 3,439.30 792.73 32.1%
321300 Workers Compensation 9,452.00 4,120.99 949.11 43.6%
321400 Unemployment 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
321500 Health Benefits 300,000.00 37,363.50 8,303.00 12.5%
130 Personal Services Unit Total 1,227,782,00) 320,913.01 73,322.94 26.1%
400000 Admin Contractual Services 40,000.00 13,286.60, 0.00 33.2%
400100 Training, Lodging & Memberships 15,000.00 4,074.24 805.34 27.2%
400101 Registration Fees 0.00 50.00 0.00
410000 Utilities: AT&T, Dominion, Ohio Edison, Verizon 20,000.00 7,280.19 493.54 36.4%
412000 Advertising, Marketing & Events 18,000.00 3,820.97 605.00 21.2%
413000 Maintenance & Repairs 30,000.00 5,734.57 0.00 19.1%
414000 Rentals and Leases 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
414100 Leases 2,000.00 932.59 204.73 46.6%
428400 Auditor/Treasurer Fee 25,000.00 13,128.12 0.00 52.5%
428500 DRETAC 10,000.00 4,536.68 0.00 45.4%
492100 Local Share 78,400.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
40 Contractual Services Unit Total 238,500.00 52,843.96 2,108.61 22.2%
500000 Admin Materials & Supplies 15,000.00 8,389.14 6,566.98 55.9%
509000 Uniforms 8,000.00| 3,599.14 442.80 45.0%
510000 Office Equipment & Furnishings 5,213.00 2,263.93 0.00 43.4%
530000 Maintenance Materials & Supplies 30,000.00 5,037.93 0.00 16.8%
542000 Fuel 20,000.00 6,696.42 1,646.12 33.5%
544000 Natural Areas Materials & Supplies 30,000.00 532.17 0.00 1.8%
596300 Equipment Less than $5000 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
596600 Furniture & Fixtures 10,000.00 615.00 0.00 6.2%
150 Materials & Supplies Unit Total 123,213.00 27,133.73 8,655.90 22.0%
|610000 Land/Easement Purchase 250,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
1610000 Land/Easement Purchase-Bird Bog 2,501.83 0.00 0.00 0.0%
680000 Construction Projects 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
|680000 Construction Projects DXPAV 180,320.50 138,809.29 0.00 77.0%
680000 Construction Projects TLTRL 103,500.00| 0.00 0.00 0.0%
680000 Construction Projects TWBLD 35,160.00 30,600.00 15,000.00; 87.0%
680000 Construction Projects TWBRD 0.00 331.15 0.00
1683000 Engineering Projects 300,000.00; 0.00 0.00 0.0%
683000 Engineering Projects DXPAV 8,100.00 4,500.00 0.00 55.6%
683000 Engineering Projects - SRFDB - Seasons Rd Fen Design Build
Restoration Project 28,992.00 892.00 348.00 3.1%
683000 Engineering Projects - TLTRL- Trail Lake Picnic Area 8,000.00 2,700.00 0.00 33.8%
683000 Engineering Projects - TWBRD Brady Tower 20,970.00 1,180.40 1,180.40 5.6%
60 Capital Outlay Unit Total 1,037,544.33|  179,012.84 16,528.40 17.3%
910000 Transfer Out 500,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
946720 Tax Levy Assessment 20,000.00 19,076.32 0.00 95.4%
190 Miscellaneous Expenses Unit Total 520,000.00 19,076.32 0.00 3.7%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES 3,147,039.33|  598,979.86 100,615.85| 19.0%
ENDING AUDITOR'S CASH BALANCE April 30 (= Cash Carryover + YTD Revenues- YTD Expenses) {Also =|
Auditor Beginning cash balance April 1st + MTD revenues - MTD expenses) S 3,362,374.37







g siLuuag JO @23els3 - UoLleuoq o31elsd JOJ SLNJIN W §

1 abed
UOLIeDO( |V 1S2JDIUT YdJen

%6°€ST 9p 6z S 00°0
%0° 00T 0S°6TEL 00°0
% VS YL"Z18°028- 00°0
%0° 00" brL ZE- 00°0
%6° €S 00°0SL‘Zb- 00°0
%0° 00° 00058~ 00°0
%6°T1SL 007 0SE‘EPy 00'0
%0° 00°00T- 0070
%0°" 00°000°T- 00'0

139dng 3T1GVIIVAY SADNVALWNONG

yoaew 439 6¥°522°9-

6¥°S2Z‘9- 9% "¥6Z ‘ST~
3s9J493Ur
00°0 0S"6TE‘L-

Xel S9UWOH poadnidejnuel

00°0 9Z 0TS ‘046~

Xel 9lelsd |edd

00°0 00°0
3Jeq| 0¥ Ped1SSUOoH 31els3 |edy

00°000°0S-

00°0 00°0
ApLsqns/pLy 31e1S

00" 000°0S- 00°000°0S-
suoLieuod puy SijLo
00°0 00°0
s994
00°0 00°0

SIDLAJIDS Jdedluod

AVNLOY AU

00°000°0S-

$T6TIY 434 00°000°0S-

AVNLOVY dLA

pngp1Ak| B 101 weaboud
15LJ4YyDeasa 1Jasn

TZ:0T £20Z/50/S0 :peieJauab 1io0doy

N39 €202/8T/¥0 9£TT00/¥0/£202

00°000°0T- 00°000°0T-
-0000€¢-02-00~-00-000-606-06-02-0098
0070 0070

-000¥ZZ-0Z-00-00-000~606-06-0.-0098

00°€20°T6L T~ 00°€20°T6L T~
-000TZZ-0Z-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098

00" vy 2e- 00°0
-00€00¢-02-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098

BJADUBD MJed ¢6D60098

00°0S.°Z6- 00°0S2°Z6-
¥d ULWPY |BJIDUID djJed TVLOL
00°000°S8- 00°000°58-

-00¥26T-0T-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
d¥d £202/92/v0 vE6T00/¥0/£202

00°059°9- 00°059°9-
-00009T-0T1-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
00°00T- 00°00T-
-000£ST-01-00~-00-000-606~06-0.-0098
00°000°T- 00°000°T-

-000ZST-0T-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

Md ULLPY | BUSUI9 MJBd T606009%

139aN9 AIdSIAZY dOdddV TYNIOINO

¥ €20 OL ¥ €207 1Ivliad vYNAINOL

13L435Ld Yded abeidod 0098 :d0d SLINNODDV

¥0 €207 ¥od

1¥0d3d 1390aN9 31va-O.L-"VIA

uoiinjos dig sgiki e

siunw %

ALNNOD FOV1H0d



Z abed

%0°

%8 ¥

%9 €t

%0°SS

%0° 00T

%0°00T

00°000°2

TI0UAVd $=NNY
T70YAVd $=NNY
L8°TT2'SL

TT0¥AVd =N
TI0UAVd p=NNY

0T"T10'SZ¥

6£°928°0£8-

00°0

£Z8ZP0=LNVHEYVM
EZVTYO=INVHUVM
00°0
£Z8Z10=LNVHUVM
ETVTYO=INVIYVM

00°0

00°0

130S UOLIBAJISAId uew|ads ayel

TS°0TE

34 £00-200-00-00-£60-S€ L92Jed 1Lpnv A3unod abeir.od

26°TSS‘TT

00'000°T-

0070

00°0

00°0

S-T# UYeH ‘z# ‘€# x1d

¥0°9v0°1-

1390Ng I18VvI1IVAVY

Z# BNIUBW-ULIJBN I ‘JBLLLWN °S EmTPWTz
1# uyeH Butseyd.nd |LO uobu3

T JJoyJdatadd Lo @ Sed paljLsJdanld
€-T Sepuv 2JuI ‘seD & | Lo jo=8

00°0

SIAINVYIWNONT

00°0 00°0
UOLSJDAUOD BAEDT Y 2LS
£28¢2F0 438 9¢°
€ZYTIP0 43¥ OT°
9p°299°S £V°88L VT

S9LJB|BS [euoseds/awLl lJed

£28200 434 08"
€2¥Iv0 J3¥ OF°

02°TeS Ly 06°886°vTZ
saLJe|es ALl ||nd dAodu3

87°L19°0T- T9 0¥6°€T0 T~

0D ?|3LL puoweLra

18°01¢€- TS 0T€E-

313ssy paxid JO a|es

vegez'e- 26" 1SS ‘TT-
SIUBWASINQWDY puy Spunidy

00°0
SSALIUBDUL pJed ILpAJD

00°0

*JUI ‘X0¥l3d

96°£56 ‘8-
saseal LLO

¥6°258°T-

AVNLOV dlW IVALDY dlA

SOVOTY d43¥ TS°

Zy60Ty 43Y bE°

ET6TTY 434 +8°
6EETIY 43d 29°
SEETTY 43¥ ¥T°
£V60TY 43¥ E£8°
YOYOTYy 434 1"

pngpakib :ax wedboud
15L4Yydeass HELT]
TZ:0T £20Z/¥0/S0 :po1eJaUb u0dy

00°000°2 0070002
-00TZ1£-0£-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
€L1'¢ C¥d £20Z/8Z/¥0 8SST00/¥0/£20Z
6y’ C3d £202/¥T/¥0 8v¥000/¥0/£202
00°000°00T 00°000°00T
-00€TTE-0£-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
288'2¢ L¥d £202/8%/¢0 8SST00/10/E20T
889°vZ £3d £20Z/¥1/¥0 2¥¥000/v0/£202
00°000°0¥9 00°000°0v9

-00ZTTE-0E€-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

Sd ULUPY

jelaudn MJled £6060098%

00°£9L°¥¥8°T- 00°€20°ZI8"'1-
O ULWPY |RJIUID Jed TVIOL
d¥d £202/£0/+v0 69T000/¥0/£20Z

00°0
-0000£2-02-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

d¥d €20Z/ZT/¥0 26,000/70/£202

ote-
00°0

gzzte-

00°0 00°0
-000052-02-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
00°000°T- 00°000°1-
-000£+2-02-00-00-000-606-06-0£-0098
9ET- d¥d €202/92/¥0 PE6T00/¥0/£202
4 & d¥d £20Z/8T/¥0 STPT00/¥0/£207
ces- d¥d £202/81/¢0 STH100/¥0/£202
€1T- d¥d £202/TT/¥0 262000/v0/£202
65— d¥d €202/£0/¥0 691000/v0/€202
00°000°0T- 00°000°0T-

-0001¥2-02-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

135ang d3sIia3dd d0dddv TT¥YNIDIYO

v €202 OL ¥ €702 TIvVi3a TVNINOL

ueinjos dis Rikre

siunw

1DL41SLa Mded shel.aod

0098 dH0d SINNODIDVY

¥0 £20Z ¥od

L3043 1390AN8 31VA-0OL-¥VIA

ALNNOD FOV.LNO0d



€

%L° 29

%1°9¢

%8°CT

%9° eV

%L°Z¢

%b°C€

%e"S

00°08T ‘ST

66898 °906

TI0dAVd #=NNY
TI0YAVd  $=NNY

05°9£9°292

00°000°'0T
TI08AVd H#=NNA
TT0¥AVd $=NNY
TO'TEE'S
TI0dAVd =NNY
TI0HAVd =NNY
047062 2
TI0¥AVd H#=NNY
TI0¥AVd $=NNY
E€T°TE0°0L

TI0¥AVd p=NNY
86°9S€° LY

00°000°2

135ang 318VIIVAY

Ov-€E£S°TT

00°0
€282V 0=LNVIIVM

ETVTYO=LNVHIVM
00°0

00°0
£28Z70=LNVYYVM
EZPTHO=1NVEUYM
00°0
£28Z70=LNVHEYM
EZVTT0=LNVYYVYM
00°0
£Z87H0=LNVHYYM
£ZPTH0=LNVYHYM
00°0

€787V 0=LNVHUVM
00°0

0070

SADONVHIWNONT

09°98Z‘€T
SILAJDS |ENIDRIIUO0D

00°0

¥6-z2e‘ €L TO"€T6°0C¢

£282¥0 43d
ECYIY0 439

05°€9£ ‘L€
s1Lyouss yi|esH

00°€0£°8

00°0 00°0

JudwAo | duaun

€28Z10 d43¥

€2¥I¥0 43
66°0Z1 ‘v
uoiriesuadwod S.3MJ0M

T1°6V6
£282v0 43y
£2PIF0 439

0£°6EP‘€
|Jded Lpap

€L°T6L
£282¥0 43d
L4 48 (VREEL]

187895°¢€€
S¥3d

v ovviL

€282v0 43

20°€¥9°T 20°€V9°Z
JJ0Aed UOLIBULWIDL/IUDWII LIDY

00°0 00°0

BWLIIRAQ ddAo|dul

avNLOV dliW avnidvY dalA

00"

00"

0S"TST ¥
0S°TIST P

00°

00°

88° 418
€19

00"

€L L0V
00°58¢

00°

187 L¥9°€
S6"86L°€

00"

Z0°€¥9°C

00"

00"

139ang d3ISIAIY

pnqp3AL6 :g1 weaboad
15L4yoesss 1a3sn
TZ:0T €202/¥0/S0 :paieasusb jaodoy

00°000°0€
-00000¥-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

000° 0t

5D ULWPY |eJaudd MJed 6060098

00°78.'222°T
Sd ULWPY |Btduad JJed TV.LIOL

Z8LLTe'T

C¥d £202/82/¥0 8SST00/¥0/£202
fdd £20Z/v1/v0 8¥¥000/v0/£202Z

000°00€ 00°000°00€

-00ST¢E-0€-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
00°000°0T

-00¥TZE-0E~00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

£¥d £202/82/p0 85ST00/v0/£202
C¥d £202/¥1/v0 8¥¥000/v0/£20Z

00°Z5%‘6
-00ETLE-0E~00-00-000-606-06-02-0098

Cdd £202¢/82/¥0 8SST00/¥0/£202
Cdd €202/¥1/v0 2v¥000/¥0/£20Z

00°0£2°0T
-00ZTZ£-0£-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098

C¥d £202/82/¥0 8GST00/¥0/£20Z
£¥d £202/v1/¥0 8v¥000/¥0/£20¢

009 ‘€01 00°009°£0T
-0TO0TZE-0£-00-00-000~606-06-0.-0098

C¥d £702/82/¥0 BSSTO0/¥0/£202

00°000°0S
-000¥T£-0£~-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

00001

e

0£2'0T

000°0S

00°000‘¢
-000£TE-0€-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

000°2

d0dddv TVYNISIHO

¥ €202 0L ¥ £Z0Z 1IvVi3Q TYNENOC

UCNI0S 0B @

1014151 dted abeldod

0098 ¥04 SINNODDV

0 €202 dod

L3043y 139dN8 31va-OL-dVIA

ALNNOD 3OV.LYOd



pngpakL6 101 weuboad
ISLIYORISY 1J43sn
v abed TZ:01 m~o~u¢o\mo 1palesausb Juoday

%y ° Sb ZEEIP°S 00°0 00°0 89°9£S'V 00°0000T 00°000°0T
Jvi3da -00582¥-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-009¢8
%S°2S 88°TL8°TT 00°0 00°0 T 8TI‘ET 00°000°S2 00°000°SZ
asuadx3 994 JaJnseadl/Joripny -00v8Zv-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
T60v2S 2Z09TET ON 1SNDzy VLTIONIW VDINOM  9S8TTTZ HOA OTETO0 ANA 00°0TT Idv £202/¥2/¥0 v/8100/v0/€202
OTEETS GSZE8ZT I9IWyy VLTIONIW VOINON 20602 HOA OTETO0 ONA £L°¥6 Idv £€202/0T/¥0 5Z8000/%0/£20Z
%0° 00T 00°0 T¥°290°T €L°%0Z 65266 00°000°'2 0070002
sasean -00T¥TH-0v-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
%0" 00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 00T 00°00T
s9sed] B Ss|elusy -000¥1t-0r-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%$°16 86°0S5°T Sy YTL'TE 00°0 LS VEL'S 00°000°0¢ 00" 000" 0€
sJleddy @ adueUIIULEW -000£TH-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0092
SZIVLS 1DTYISIQ MNiVd 3OVINOduws ANOD B SYOLISIA  T6TITZ HOA 9FTZSO ONA 00°S09 Idv £€202/92/¥0 v28100/v0/£202
%8 LY 00"S6£°6 £0°¥8L'V 00° 509 26°028°¢€ 00°000°8T 00°000°8T
S3UaA3 ‘buliddflen ‘BuLsiiJaApy -000ZT¥-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
S60vZS IP8 80Z 600 OIT 12IVas NOSIG3 OIHO 88TTTZ HOA S/8200 ONA SO°/8 Idv £202/¥2/¥0 ¥.8T00/¥0/£202
YZEETS €96 608 $ET OTT 32V NOSIO3 OIHO 012607 HOA SZ8Z00 GNA £8°0. Idv €202/0T/¥0 SZ8000/10/£20Z
206225 9TF 0ST 6¥T OTT LJJVaus NOSIG3 OIHO 08880 HOA §28200 ONA £.°66 Idv £€202/¥0/¥0 TZ£000/v0/€202
y¥822S 208 T6TT 00ST ¥ 3DOVsx ADYINT NOINIWOD 098807 HOA $H8Z00 GNA £6°SET Idv €202/%0/¥0 TZ£000/v0/€202
%0° SOT 00°000°‘T- I8°6TL €T ¥S°c6¥ 61°082°'L 00°000'02 00°000°02
saLaLLLan -0000Tt-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%0° 00T 00°0ST- 00° 00T 00°0 00" 0§ 00°0 000
$994 uolLle.alsLbay -T0T00v-0¥-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
oTIPeS dS dWVD/INIAT FIA0TIWI SWIT¥es OI¥3 LSIHHOVAS  O6TTTZ HOA ZTZZSO ANA Zb°£6T IdV £202/vZ/¥0 v/8T100/90/€20Z
TL0¥2S 3I440 SHIAYODIY OL AWd SWITMz» SIUHD 1JONDAVYD  S8TTTZ HOA /95200 ONA 00°OQFT Idv £202/¥2/¥0 ¥/8T00/¥0/E£202
6£622S TIW “SINIWIASUNEWIAN B TIAVYLyxx ATIOH DYIFINOLS 268802 HOA 89/TSQO ONA $9°€ZE Idv £€202/¥0/¥0 TZ£000/%0/£202
£262¢S IIW ‘SINTWIASUNEWIIY P JIAVELy:  VID3IS3IY IHAOY 688807 HOA 8TZ8Y0 ONA 8Z°8ST Idv £202/%0/¥0 TZ£000/40/£202
%E"ES S TTS‘2 TE VIS ¥E°S08 ¥Z vi0°Y 00°000°ST 00°000°ST
diysaaquan B buruteal -00T00V-0¥-00~-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

135dN4d A9dVIIVAVY SIINVAIWNDNT AvNLIV dli YNV dLA 135ang d3SIAIY dOdddv TVYNIDINHO

10141560 Y.1ed 8bvi.iod 0098 ¥0d SINNOIDV

¥ €207 OL v €Z0Z 1IViIA VNINOL Y0 €202 ¥od

L3043y 139dn4 31va-0L-dV3A
ALNNOD 39V.1A0d

uonjus Ewi
siunuw




4 abed
%0 0CT 00°000°T- 00°000°‘9 00°0 00°0
000S$ ueyl ssa7 udwdrnbiy
%0°0S 00°000°ST £8°L9% ‘T 00°0 LT°2€S
ddns R s|eLJdlel eauy |ednien
LYEETS 953LlQ Z8°8ZPT SeD LSIA MiVdux ALID VNNIAVY  80460L HOA T/Zv00
%5748 00°008°2 85°€08°0T T1°949°T ~¢.mmwbo
E}
%L°99 00°000°0T £0°296°vT 00°0 £6°L£0°S
ddns/s|eLJ@len IdueUdIULERW
%v° 06 00°00S L0°6¥Y°C 060°0 £6°£92°C
sbuLysLuang » udwdinba adL4jo
(123149 -3 J34€31s plotd LOTULSIA MdVdxx I NITUDS TTVIWIUd TT£60Z HOA €00¥00
%S°TIT 00°000°T- 98°00v‘S 08" vy T 66S‘E
swJojLun
T60¥2S CLO9TET ON 3ISNDxx VLIONIW VOINOM L8TTTL HOA OTETO0
¥48¢2S ZZ09TET IDIVxy VLITIONIW VOINOM  ZZ880. HOA OTETO00
9982¢S Jed / SPT0S86E9Z ON DBULYNDBUL,x NILINYYIN JILSNI 298804 HOA TZS0SO
%8°6T1 00°2£6°2- 98°285°6 86°995°9 ¥1 688
saL|ddns B s|eL49IBW ULWPY
A €9°2Z€°v2T TP e€€ T T9°80T ‘¢ 96 £¥8°2S
%0" 00°00¥ 8/ 00°0 00°0 00°0

aJeys |edoT

135an9 318V I1IVAY

SADNVHAWNINT

IvNLoOV dli IVNLDY

[NWN

pngpafk L6 :q1 weuabougd
3SLAYOedSY t43sn
TZ:0T £20Z/40/S0 :paledausb 1uoday

00°000°S 00°000‘S
-00£965-05-00~00~000-606-06-0.-0098
00°000°0¢ 00°000°0€

-000v+5-05-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

aNA ZT°9Y9°T IdV £202/0T/¥0 SZ8000/¥0/£202

00700002 00°000°0¢
-000Z2¥5-05~00-00-000-606-06-0/-0098
00°000°0€ 00°000°0€
-0000€£5-05-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
00°€TZ S 00°000°¢€
-0000TS5-05-00-00~000-606-06-0/-0098
aNA 08° 2t Idv €202/0T/¥0 $SZ8000/¥0/£20Z
00°000°8s 00°000°8
-000605-05-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
ONA 89°99T Idv £202/¥2/v0 ¥Z8T00/¥0/€207
aNA 0E°82F Idv €202/¥0/V0 TZ£000/¥0/£202
aNA 00°2.6°S Idv £202/%0/¥0 TZE000/¥0/€202
00°000°ST 00°000°ST
-000005-05-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
00°00S ‘8T 00°00S°82¢
SO Ulwpy [eJdusdd djJed IV.OL
00° 00V ‘8 00°00v ‘8L

-001Z6¥~0t-00~-00-000-606-06-04-0098

139dnd a3SIA3Y dQdddV TTYNI9STHO

¥ €Z0Z OL + €707 1Ivliaa vNinor

P

12L143S kg jded =6visod 0098 :¥04 SLINNODDY

¥0 €¢0C ¥od

LH0d3y 139dNd 31vA-Ol-¥VIA

uonnjos WA aMIE o

siunuw

ALNNOD 39V1¥0d



pnqpak)6 :qr weubouad

IsSLdyoeass J43SN
9 s TZ:0T £202/%0/50 :paiesoush duoday
%0° 00°000°00€ 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°000°00¢€ 00°000°00€
sidaload BuLJ9auLbul -000£89-09-00-00-000-606-06-0/-0098
%0° 00T 00°000°T- $8°899 00°0 ST TEE 00°0 00°0
s3d3f{oud UCLIDNJIISUOD ay¥amML-000089-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
80TH2ZS ‘PY BUUBIARY THZZ UOLIL|OWdA:: ONITWIIH L¥380M  G68TTTZ HDOA ZS8Z00 GONA 00°000°ST IdV €202/¥2/¥0 ¥28T00/v0/£202
%b° 86 00°09S 00°000‘v 00°000°ST 00°009 ‘0¢ 00°09T°S¢€ 00°0
s333(0ud uoLIdNJIISUOD a1aML-000089-09-00-00-000-606-06-02.-0098
%0° 00T 00°0 00°00S ‘' €0T 00°0 00°0 00°00S ‘£0T 00°0
s339f0ud uOLIDNJISUOD T4111-000089-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%5°66 00°s26 T2°985°0F 00°0 62°608‘8€T 05°0Z€ ‘08T 00°0
s3dafoudd uUOLIDNJIISUOD AVdXd-000089-09-00-00-000-606-06-0£-0098
%0° 00°000°00T 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°000°00T 00°000°00T
s3d9foud uoLIdNIISUOD -000089-09-00~-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%9°L1 €8°T90°C 00°Ov¥ 00°0 00°0 €8°T0S°2 ) 00°0
aseydJnd puel 99Q¥9-0000T9-09-00-00-000-606-06-02.-0098
%2°E 00°000°2¥2 00°000°8 00°0 00°0 00°000°0S¢ 00°000°0S2
aseydind 3audwase3l/puen -0000T9-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098

3 ULWpY [edaUad dded 96060098

%9°6/2 00°820°0€ £Z°150°99 06°559°8 €L EET LT 00°€TZ 2T 00°000°TZT
SW ULWPY [B4BUSD MJed ITv.IOL

%0°0¢ 00°000°Z 00°S8E‘Z 000 00°ST9 00°000°0T 00°000°0T
S9J4NIXLd B 34nILULNS ~009965-05-00-00-000-606-06-0Z-0098

1390049 318VIIVAV S3ONTHEWNING IVNLDV Al avniovy diA 135ang d3SIA3Y d0¥dddv T¥NIDIHO

32L.035La MJdud abeidod 0098 ¥0d SINNODDV

P €202 OL ¥ €202 1Ivi3d TvNdnoc 0 £20Z o4

LH0d3d 139dNg F1Lva-0Ol-dVviA
o~ ALNNOD 39V.LO0d




pngp1Ak|L6 :ar weaboud

L abed T2:0T £202/p0730 :poreaoudB 1ddaN
%8° € 00°000°00S 89°£Z6 00’0 2£°920°6T 00°000°02ZS 00°000°02S
IW ULWPY |BJBUID Jed TVIOL
%0° 00T 00°0 89°£26 00°0 Z£°9/0°6T 00°000°0Z 00°000°02
JUBWISSISSY AAST Xel =-0229¥6-06-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098
uLwpv 433 007000 °00S vna €202/¥2/¥0 L69T00/+0/£202
%0° 00000 °00S 00°0 00°0 00°0 00" 000°00S 00°0
1N0 IIUBAPY -000026-06-00-00-000-606~06-0/-0098
uLwpy 43d 00°000°00S- vna €20¢/¥2/v0 L69T100/¥0/£202
%0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°000° 009
inQ sJ3jsueal -000016-06-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
SN ULWpY [BJ2U3D >Jed
%S°9¢ £8°9v0°659 99°¥8¥ ‘66T ov-825°9T Y8 ZI0°6LT EEPPSLE0'T 00°000'0S9
0D ULWPY [BJDUID dJBd TViOL
0T62¢S JBMOL YIILMS  1IDLJISLA YJBdes IHDUV VINSNINAA  $88807Z HOA Z.1.b0 GNA OF“08T‘T IdV €20¢/v0/¥0 TZ£000/v0/£202
%C° T 00°000°ST 09°68L°T 0r°08T'T OV 08T‘T 00°046°02 00°0
s1d9foud BuLsdauibul QIIML-000£89-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%0°00T 00°0 00°00£°‘S 00°0 00°00.°2 00°000°8 0070
sa1o3foud BuraaauLbuz TdL1L-000£89-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
$6257S uoL}IReJ01S9Y UdJd PY SUOSEISy: SV B JFTUINOWAVH  ZTZ60Z HOA Z#6Z00 GNA 00°SHT IdV £Z0Z/0T/¥0 SZ8000/¥0/£20Z
968726 uosSedS/12143ISLA dJted 368U0dys SY B ITULNOWWYH  $9880L HOA Z¥6.00 ANA 00°00Z IdV £202/v0/¥0 TZ£000/%0/£202
%0° 00T 0070 00°00T'82 00°8vE 007768 00°266°82 00°0
sidafoud BuLrJdasuLbuz 9044S-000£89-09-00-00-000-606-06-0.-0098
%$TEVT 00°00S ‘- 00°00T°Z 0070 00°00S‘t 00°00T‘8 00°0

sad9loud BuradauLbuz

1350nd 31aVI1IVAVY SADNVYGWNDNIT AvNLOV dli avNidv dlA

AVdXa-000€£89-09-00-00-000-606-06-02-0098

135anad aaSIAIY dQdddV TTVNIDIHO
1DL11sid YJed 3heliod 0098 ¥03 SINNODDY|

¥ €202 OL ¥ £20Z 1Iv.i3aa TVNENOC

Y0 €202 ¥od

1¥0d3y 1390aN8 31vA-OL-¥VIA

ALNNOD IAOVLHOd



] abed
LE"VLE'TIE €
S2°096°v9v
79 ETh L68'2
Sb"992°022'2 20°€6L°22¢E $8°ST9'00T
6£°945°€L8- 00°0 8¢ L1909~
%E°TT- 90" 069 9vE‘T 20°€6L° 228 L5°866°6€

135aNn3 313VIIVAVY SIADONVHAWNONIT

IVNLOY diw

S3ISN3AX3

ANV S3NN3ATY 40

98°6.6°86S

T9'0¥6 ‘€90 T~

SL°096‘¥9¥-

IVNLOY alA

pngpakLb a1 weuboud
umwguuuumu 198N
TZ:0T €202/¥0/50 :poredausb 1soday

ADNVIVE ANNd AISIATY

13N - 3DNVIVE GNNd NI IONVHD

3DNVIVE ANNd dOTud

€€ 6EO LYT € 00°282° %L T
SASNIdXT TVLIOL

00" LTS L86°'T- 00°€22°V06'T-
SANNIAIY TVLiOL

00°60S ‘Zy8
13143510 JJed abeidod v.LOL

€£°225°602'T

1395and d3sSIA3d dO¥ddv TUNIDIHO

¥ €T0Z OL ¥ £Z0Z 1IVi3aA IVNUNOL

15435 Ld d.ded ahevasod 0098 W04 SINNODDV

0 £20Z uod

L0433 139aN8 31LVA-0OL-¥VIA

ALNNOD 39V.LNO0d



6 abed

82°€22°9 00°0 00°0
%0° 00T 82°€LL°9 00°0 00°0
%0° 00T 8C €429 00°0 00°0
%0°00T 82°€4L'9 000 00°0

azisn % 139and 379V I1IVAY SADINVHIINAINT vNLOV dli

87 €LL°9-

82 €449~

82°€LL'9-

87°€4L°9-
1uedD d3e1S

IYNLOV GlA

pngpak| 6 :gI weuabouad
1SLJYDRDSD 14350
TZ:0T €Z0Z/0/S0 :paiedsust uodey

00°0 00°0
S3ANNIATY TviOoL
00°0 00°0

Aemuasud }oaJdd 3|bea vioL

00°0 0070
¥d Aemuddun >oaJd 3ibe3a viol

0070 00°0
10903-000T61-0T-00-00-000-606-06-0/-2T98

dd AemudID 393.D o[ Ped TENGLT9S

1395aNd ¢3ISIAIY dQdddv TYNIDIN0

¥ €207 OL ¥ £Z0Z 1Iv.i3Q TvNYNOC

ABMUDDID 3934d 9|he3 £T98 1¥0d SINNODDY

0 €20¢ ¥od

Ld0d3d 1390dN8 31vA-0L-dV3A

ucyn|os dis sikle

siunw

ALNNOD F9V.LH0d



v:.__vuwww H O o Em._nomn
1sLayoe 1aasn
oT obed TZ:0T £20Z/v0/S0 :poiedauab Juoday

z% ISLIYORIS D143 AQq poleddudd - L30d3I¥ H0 ANI =

%6°TT- vETEIW ESE‘T T0°€6L°L2E £5°866°6€ £0°VEL TLY- €£°225°602°1 00°60S‘Z¥8
IVL0L QNWED

IVNLDY QLW VN1V JLA 135aNd d3STAIY d0dddv TVYNIDIHO

L39aN8 319V I1IVAVY SIDINVHFWNINT

b €202 OL ¢ €20C TIVL3A TVNYNOC ¥0 €202 ¥04

LY¥0d3Y 139dN8 F1LvA-OLdVIA
S ALNNOD 39VLIYO0d

ucnjos 41z BiApe



1T

abed

1 :uolido jewdoj |Leiad
C # 0d J0 # 3L AQ 1J40S
N :sotJaud brp/qundua out
A :S9LJ41UD 19b6png 8pnjduIr
v /€202 :43d/4A OL
v /€202 :J49d/JA woJd
A illeadp Leusnof jutrad
T :9pod paemiol Adaed

N :329fqo o3 sidofoud Loy
N :9>eds a|qnog

A 1lunodde 15 |Lhy uldd
A 1S1D0® |eq 049z ssasddns
N :ALuo S|e303 3uLid

A I1LP3J4D SE INUBAdJ JUldd
¥ /£20C poLtdd/Jedn

pnqpaA| b a1 weaboud
um_.._uumamw 1a9sn
T2:0T €202/v0/50 :poieasudd 1uoday

apod dn||oy
sniels unoldy
adA1 1unodov
3d9loud

323Lqo

b.4o

3p0OD JDIdRJIEYD
Kaobaned
uwn | od

auLl
1Jedag-qns
Judwisedag
Aduaby
uol3ound

98 pund

anLeA pLaLd dWeN pLatd
BLUDILID puld

N :SJEe||Op UOL| LW 666 PO9IXd S|EI0I/SIUnouy
a IMBLA JedALl|hKW

N :3unowe uolLitsiLnbaa apn|our

A iadue|eg pund apn{dul

N :0u4dz se si2bpng snuaAds uLsd

T :3dA1 jewdod

N :SBuLpedy UOLSJIA-SONUIADY IUldd

A ‘UOLSJSA QLW JULJd

3 :uoL3ldLJdsap JOYS JO LLhd ulud

130433 135an8 3L1va-0Ll-dviA
181213 JJ0day

N N 0 ¥ @dudnbas

N N 0 € ddusnbas

N A 6 Z dduanbas

A A 1 T 9@duanbas
JeaJg abed |eiol # pLoLd

SNOTLdO 1¥0d3¥

130d3y 1390aN8 31va-OLdVIA

ALNNOD 39V.L¥0d






1 o9bed

JONVIVE HSVD =
YNINSVYIUL

UBIIN|05 DU Ji 'ﬁ.n“w\l

slunwl <%,

SLINVIAYM S+
ONIANVLSLNO

£202/0£/%0 40 SV

JONVIVE HSVD
YoLTIANY

AONVIVE HSVD =
YoLIanv

SINVIHVYM -
ONIANVLSLNO

£202/10/¥0 40 SV

3Jlpne b :QI weaboad
younysy 1Jasn
ZP260 £20Z/¥0/50 :paieJausb uodsy

LLeJl ®e] uL|Js8 TT98

00" :STvL0L OT98 ANNd
00°
paysJdaiem >oa4D yIsudeads OTof
00" 1STVLOL 6098 QNN4
00°
VW34 addd 6098
00° -STV.101l 8098 ANNd
00"

LLBLl 233UU0D uL|juedd addd 8098
6E°CL6'TT

6£°2/6°TT
paysJalem >a9.4D yddudedud /098

$STv10Ll 2098 annd

00" 1S1v.10L 9098 aNNd
00°
siudWwaACJdWT Yded XLd 9098

99°TS9°6¢ ISTV10L S098 annd
99°159°62

2A0LduI S| Ledl SJd3empesH 5098
00" 1S7v10L 098 aNnd
00°

LleJl ¥LE B N LH 8beisod 098
00" 1SIVI0L £098 aNnd
00"

JUBWIACJAWI SPOOM SJDUMOL Addd £098

$SIVIOL T098 ANNd

A3 Lunuwod |ed07 addd T098
oV Tiv‘L0V €

ov TLv‘L0v'E

32LJ43s1g dJed dbeisod 0098
JINVIVE HSYD
dRANSYIIL

1S7vL10L 0098 ANNd

Joday uonelIdouos9y Jainseal] Jo)pny

ALNNOD A9V LHO0d



F4 abed

€0°606°8Pb°E 02°€08°LT €€ SOT'TEY ‘€ 06"€0T'TLb'E 9t°860'S

¥2°660°ZT 00" $2°660'2ZT ¥2°660°2T 00"

$2°660°CT 00" $2°660°CT +2°660°2T 00"

O v8y ‘€T 00° o ¥8Y €1 o ¥8Y ET 00°

Ob 8V €T 00° o v8Y €1 o v8Y €T 00°

00° 00° 00" 00" 00"

00° 00° 00° 00" 00°

00° 00° 00" 00" 00*

00° 00° 00° 00° 00°

00° 00° 00° 00° 00"

00" 00° 00° 00° 00*

LT°€TS'T 00° £2°€25°'1 LT°€T5°T 00°

22°€eS'T 00" 22°£25°1 22°€25°T 00"

00° 00° 00° 00" 00"

00° 00 00" 00° 00°

JONVIVE HSVD = SLINYHAVM + JDONVIVE HSVO FONVIVE HSYO = SLNVUYM -
YNNSYIYL ONIANV.LSLNO JoLIanv yoLianvy ONIANVLSLNO

ucinjos dis JaifL e = o

sunw %%,

£202/0€/¥0 40 SV

£202/10/%0 40 SV

aJ3pne b :aI weabouad
yaamydy saasM
Z¥:60 £20Z/¥0/S0 :paieadudb Juoddy

9€£°202°'94v ‘€ 1SIVIOL 1M0d3Y’

2 660°'CT iSTIVLIOL ZT98 ANNd

$2°660°CT

Kemuanuo yooadd a|b6e3 2198
oy v8P €T :§Iviot 9T98 aNnd
oY v8¥ €T

pund AemusaJo >aaJd sJdduil 9198

00° ISTvloL ST98 aNNd
00" .
fog 1uax ST98
00" $STVLOL $T98 annd
00°
pund SS90V 3e0g X0d4 paY 198
00" {STTVIOL £798 aNnd
00°
JjJed bog uipjuedd €198
Lz2°£28't !STV10L 7798 annd
2276281
jyJed uebiow ZT198
00" !STVLIOL TT98 ANNd
00"
IONVIVE HSYD annd
¥IUNSVIUL

Joday UoKeIIoUOI9Y Jainseal] Joypny

ALNNOD IOV.L1¥O0d



aa31pne| 6 :aI weuboud
yaunyoy tJasn
m abed Nenmom~o~\vomo"kumgw:wmu._cnuz

Ltedl 3e7 uL|J39 TI98

-SV10l 0T98 anNnd

0

0

0° 00" 00" 00" 00" 00° 1eMm e9JD doduNedds (I98
(0] $$VL0L 6098 dANNd
0

VYiW3d GdOd 6098
:STVLOL 8098 aANNd

0" 00" 00° 00" 00" 00" dUUOD UlL|juedd dddd 8098
:STvIlOL 098 aNnd

€°2L6°TT 00° 6£°2L6'TT 00° 00" 6£°2L6°TT 1BM 234D dsudedds L098
+SIVLOL 9098 daNNd

0’ 00" 00° 00" 00" 00" uswWRAOLdWI jJed XLd 9098
<STVLOL S098 annd

9°TS9°62 00" 99°T59°62 00’ 00° 99°T59°62 I SLledl sJalempeaH $098
-STV10Ll +098 aNNd

0 00" 00° 00" 00° 00" jLa ® MLH abeidod Q98
1SIVLIOL £098 ANNd

SPOOM SJU3UMOL Addd £098

*STv10Ll T098 ANNd

0° 00" 00" 00° 00° 00" lunuwo) |e307 addd T098
£ +STVL0L 0098 aNnd

m.Ham.vmo.m Nc.mmn.nmm nm.*hm.m@m.m mw.maw.caﬂ ww.nﬂw.owu vm.mnm.mov.m Tuumvnxgmummwuuoucoww
JONV1VE = SIDONVHEWNINT - . v SIUNLIONIAX3 - S1dT353Y TV10L + IDNVIVE HSVD

a3¥FGWNININN ONTANV.LSINO IVLOL YOLIANV £2/T0/70

£20Z/08/¥0 HONOYHL AYVWWNS SANNd 11V

Joday UoKeIIdU0IY JoInsedl ] Joypny

uoIIN}os dis sagkiE

Siunt = i = | ALNNOO IOVLNOd




asaipne| b :gI weusbouad

34Ny’ M k310
v abed 760 msw\voumu :payesaush Jaodey
23 YoINyDd 21v) Aq pa1RIDUDD - LNOJIY 4O ONI
£ GOT TP € : R2°/79'09 ISIVLOL 1¥0d3Y

1STV10L 2198 aNnd

2°660°CT 00° $Z°660°2T 00° 00° ¥2°660°2T eMudaJD ¥94d oLbe3 198
:SIvi0L 9798 aNNd

v vev el 00" oF vy €l 00° 00’ ov v8b €T U3aJ9 H34I SJANULL 9T98
$SIVLOL ST98 annd

bog aua ST98

*Svi0l $T98 annd

0 00° 00° 00" 00" 00° SS920V 1v0g X04 p9y¥ 198
$SIVI0L £T98 aNNd

JjJded fog uLpjuedd €198

1SIV10L ZT98 anNnd

€S 00° 22°€2S°T 00" 00° 22°€25°T jaed uebaow ZT98
$SIVLIOL TT98 annd

FONVIVE = SIONVYINNIONT - 3DONVIVE HSVD = SIUNLIANILXI = S1dI3aD3¥ IvLOL -+ FONVIVE HSVD
A3AFGWNININN ONTANV.LS LNO HOLTIANY HNTANT V101 HOLIANY £Z2/T0/00

£Z20Z/0E/%0 HONOBHL AUVWWNS SANNd 1TV

J0day uoneljIouossy Jainseal] Jo)pny

ucIinus dia DA -

siunw %%,

ALNNOD 39V1d0d



To:

From: Christine Craycroft, Executive Director

Re:

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
May 8, 2023 6:00 PM

Portage Park District Board of Commissioners

Executive Director’s Staff Update

DISTRICT

Administration/Special Projects

1.

pwN

© N W

9.

Received executed copy of Carlton Purchase Agreement

Submitted the Clean Ohio Trails grant application for Headwaters Trail Phase VIiI
Coordinating with architect and Building Department for final modifications prior to rebidding.
Received proposal from PC Engineer’s consultant Prime Engineering, regarding including
design for future parking drive entrances on Ravenna Road as part of the bridge replacement
project.

Drafted/reviewed OPWC Clean Ohio NRAC scoring methodology revisions with Lange.
Participated in Portage County Comp Plan open house.

Attended KSU Environmental Design Symposium

Presented at 25™ Portage County Environmental Conservation Awards Event and Leadership
Portage County

Participated in multijurisdictional meeting with ODNR/USACE

10. Continued planning and pursuit of funding for multiple acquisitions.

Park Operations, Maintenance, and Improvement

1.

2.

Maintenance/Operations

a. Continue to perform routine tasks including restroom cleaning and trash removal, inventory,
and supply management, building maintenance, vehicle and equipment maintenance, trail
checks, trail maintenance and downed tree removal.

b. Continued weekly monitoring of Beaver activity at Trail Lake Dam and Seneca Ponds.

Park Improvements

a. Demolition of the house at Towner's Woods is complete.

b. The Dix Park project is scheduled to restart May 8.

c. The Project at Trail Lake is still on hold.

d. Met with Joe Bodnar, Portage County Building Dept regarding the Brady Lake Switch Tower
project to discuss occupancy options.

Natural Areas Steward Bob Lange
Stewardship and Restoration

1

Dix Park- completed prescribed fire in tall grass unit; Hiram College and Geauga Park District
assisted.

Eagle Creek Greenway- plowed and prepped sites, planted trees donated by Davey.

Bird Family Bog- plowing for TNC archaeological investigation on mitigation sites, spraying to
prep meadow seeding areas.

Projects/Planning

1.
2.

Invitations out for Bird Family Bog Preserve Bioblitz, June 23 & 24.
Shelly property- participated in NAWCA meeting with Chris.



NRAC methodology input and meetings

Planning and tree selection for Oakwood landscape

Visit and hike at the Stream and Wetlands Foundation mitigation site in Deerfield.
Roberts- researching and acquiring bathymetric survey equipment.

7. Seasons Fen monthly meetings, coordination

Partnership/Collaboration/Training
1. Roberts, Stoneberg, Lange- participated in KSU Bioblitz

Lange- PPD presentation to Portage County Gardeners

Lange- Leadership Portage County

Assisted Geauga Park District with prescribed fires at Observatory Park

Lange- provided seed and assisted The Church in Aurora with making seed bombs for PPD as
their monthly service project.

o nhhw

nopwN

Public Engagement and Education

Education Report

1. Ohio Crane Count volunteers only located one crane within the county limits, but over 300 cranes
were found throughout the whole survey area. An article featuring our volunteers and mentioning
PPD was published in the Canton Repository and later by the Akron Beacon Journal.

2. On top of regular programming, the education team and volunteers expanded our reach by
attending the Kent State University Earthfest, Crestwood Health Fair, PARTA Wellness Fair, and
teaching at Harmon Middle School in Aurora.

3. Our intern, Hannah Michael from Kent State University, starts May 10 and will be with us for the
summer. She requires 450 hours for her internship program.

4. The Progress Report and Program Guide have been completed and will be mailed to 43,000
households.

Ranger Départment
Patrol Activities

Foot patrol miles — 53 + 49.3; Bike patrol miles — 48.8: Building Checks — 1: Visitor Contacts — 86 + 96;
Warnings — 2 + 3 (Trespassing at Bird Bog and dog off-leash (4))

Administrative

Ranger Lee - KnowB4 cyber training \

Ranger Nietert — KnowB4 2023 Kevin Mitnick Security Awareness, Senior Hike, and Eagle Creek Sneak
Peek.



RESOLUTION # 2023-33

Re: Resolution approving Portage Park District expenditures for the month of April 2023

WHEREAS: The following expenditures have been made in April 2023 in the following budget categories:

‘General Operating Fund #8600
Description Payee Amount

'Unit 30 Payrofl/Personal Services Portage County Auditor/Payroll $  73,322.94
|Unit 40 Contract Services $ 20861
Reimbursements: travel, Recorder's fees, postage, refreshments Rodhe, Stoneberg, Craycroft, Seachrist $ 805.34
Utilities: Natural gas at 2 locations, electric at 6 locations Dominion Energy Ohio, Ohio Edison $ 493.54
Advartising-Marketing: Streetsboro Visitors Bureau guide Streetshoro Visitors Bureau $ 605.00
Leases: copiers Konica Minolta $ 204.73
| e I B L e e
|Unit 50 Materials & Supplies $ 8,655.90
Admin. Materials & Supplies: office supplies, paper, Z Cards Konica Minolta, Instep S 6,566.98
Uniforms: shirts Primal Screen $ 442.80
Fue!: Gasoline and diesel City of Ravenna $ 1,646.12
Unit 60 Capital $ 16,528.40
| construction: Towner's Woods Residential Building iHelmling Excavating $ 15,000.00
Engineering/Architecture Projects: Season's Road Fen Hammontree & Assoc S 348.00
Engineering: Towner's Woods Brady Switch Tower Peninsula Architects $ 1,180.40
GENERAL FUND GRAND TOTAL ALL UNITS 30 THROUGH 90 $ 100,615.85

WHEREAS The Board of Park Commissioners authorizes expenses by Budgetary Unit per its budget appropriations resolutions,
and

WHEREAS These specific expenditures have been approved by the Executive Director per the approved Park District annual
budget and Park District bylaws and all copies of invoices and receipts are available upon request.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District hereby approves the
above expenditures made in April 2023.

Upon a motion by Orashan and second by Ruchotzke, the vote was as follows:
A. Orashan: Yes T. Hrdy: Yes C. Engelhart: Yes R. Ruchotzke: Yes K. Ruehr: Yes

| certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open meeting on May 8, 2023.

istine Craycroft, Executive Director







RESOLUTION # 2023-34

Re: Authorization for a Memorandum of Understanding with the Portage Park District Foundation

WHEREAS, the Portage Park District is an independent political subdivision of the State of Ohio created to conserve the natural
resources of the State, including forests, fields, streams, lakes and wetlands, and the plants and animals which live in these
habitats; and,

WHEREAS, the Portage Park District Foundation is organized as a nonprofit entity under the laws of the State of Ohio and under
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, whose sole purpose is to seek and promote public representation, participation,
awareness, and support in, of, and for Portage Park District in its mission to "Preserve, Conserve, and Protect" the natural
features of Portage County; and,

WHEREAS, a primary purpose of the Foundation is to secure, manage, and invest privately raised funds, gifts, and bequests in
support of the District; and,

WHEREAS, the Foundation operates as a legal entity separate from the District, and is governed by an independently elected
Board of Trustees, none of whom are employees of the District; and,

WHEREAS, the Foundation and the District wish to assure the continued success and prosperous growth of the District by
memorializing the responsibilities and obligations of the Foundation and the District. NOW THEREFORE, BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District does hereby authorize its Executive Director to sign the
attached Memorandum of Understanding between the Portage Park District and the Portage Park District Foundation.

Upon a motion by Hrdy and second by Orashan, the vote was as follows:

A. Orashan: Yes T. Hrdy: Yes C. Engelhart: Yes R. Ruchotzke: Yes K. Ruehr: Yes

I certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open meeting on May 8, 2023.

Moty

Chpétine ‘Eraycroft, Executive Director







RESOLUTION # 2023-35

Re: Autharization for a Change of Scope with the Portage County Engineer for the Ravenna Road
Bridge Project

WHEREAS, by previous resolution 2019-22, passed by the Portage Park District Commissioners on June
24, 2019, the Portage Park District entered into a cooperative agreement with the Portage County
Engineer (“Engineer”) to fund the Ravenna Road Bridge Replacement Project (PID 105556), and

WHEREAS, the Park District would like to add design work to incorporate the drive acquired through the
Park District’s purchase of property at 2241 Ravenna Road and determine the feasibility of developing a
new parking area adjacent to the PORTAGE Hike and Bike Trail on the southwest side of the new bridge,
and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has requested and received a fee proposal for the additional design work from
its consultant, Prime AE, for which the Park District would be responsible, NOW, THEREFORE BE IT

RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District does hereby authorize the
Executive Director to request the Portage County Engineer to proceed with the engineering
design/feasibility study to incorporate a new public drive at 2241 Ravenna Road, and assess the
feasibility of developing a new parking area adjacent to the PORTAGE Hike and Bike Trail, as part of the
Ravenna Road Bridge Replacement Project for an amount up to $12,500 payable by the Park District or
through the Park District’s ODOT Road Tax Allocation Fund.

Upon a motion by Orashan and second by Englehart, the vote was as follows:

A. Orashan: Yes T. Hrdy: Yes C. Engelhart: Yes R. Ruchotzke: Yes K. Ruehr: Yes

| certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open meeting on
May 8, 2023.

//
22 -

Chrisfine (fraycroft, Executive Director




=1 = " mmr'm
u - I-I.-I e N _J u
. Lt T
- ‘ . L I II = u u
-T _— I‘ u _— - u - - u
d. T SFIFccL f.=s oER = =" 11
= m.e. rr = .. O
u = ‘- l.h .- ‘IIII I u u u I*.-
u u _.-I II L - = ‘F III
-
-. --d-l.-.-- u .I-I H . u .I--LI
ri" b gkl r == . .
mae=m . F =5 It . .
.I- u N = u _— L L H NN u -
= =il i Rl - = e b
.I J_h u m u u I u u [ - u u
i 17E. °* pe - il
- I‘ u u H . ‘
u L - Il-ql =
u - u ‘
F == S = . =,
_—
N u
u -
u II 1. II. B



™
P R I I l l E < 540 White Pond Drive | Suite E | Akron, Ohio 44320

April 14, 2023

Portage County Engineer
5000 Newton Falls Road
Ravenna, OH 44266

Attention: Larry Jenkins Jr., PE, PS (Chief Deputy County Engineer)

Re: Ravenna Road Plan Updates
Scope of Services and Fee Proposal

Dear Mr. Jenkins,

PRIME AE Group is submitting, as requested, a scope of services and fee proposal to update the previously
submitted final Ravenna Road plan set to update the drainage design and drive details for the park drive on
the northeast side of the project area within the limits of the Right of Way. PRIME AE will also investigate the
feasibility of adding a driveway for the park district on the southwest side of the project site. Findings from
this abbreviated study will be compiled in a letter and sent to the County Engineers office and the Park District.
If the drive is feasible, another mod will be submitted to the County to add the drive {within the R/W limits) to
the plans.

Scope of Services;
o PRIME AE will update the plans and estimate to reflect the changes to the park drive on the

northeast corner of the project site.
o PRIME AE will investigate the addition of a park drive on the southwest side of the bridge.

Schedule:

PRIME AE will submit the updated plan set and feasibility letter within 20 business days of Notification to
Proceed from the City.

Fee: PRIME AE Group will provide the above services for a lump sum fee of $12,500.

If you have any guestions or need anything else, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

Angela Trautman, PE
Project Manager

ﬂ_:é\‘\-e:?:. CONNECTING. CREATING. CONSERVING. COMMUNITY.






Resolution 2023--36

RE: Request of Funds from the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) and Designation of
Projects for Ohio Parks Districts Roadwork Fund FY 2024-2025 through the Ohio Parks &
Recreation Association (OPRA).

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners (the Board) for the Portage Park District has need for
improvement of public park roadways owned and maintained by the Park District in Portage
County; and

WHEREAS, the Park District was created according to Ohio Revised Code 1545, owns or holds at a
minimum a 15-year lease of eligible parkland for roadwork funding, and has adequate, available
resources for the construction and maintenance of requested park road improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Park Districts Roadwork Fund is provided by the Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT) for such purposes as authorized by Ohio Revised Code 5511.06, is subject to
the Park District Guidance To ODOT’s Metropark Program as prescribed by ODOT, and is
coordinated by the Ohio Parks & Recreation Association (OPRA); and

WHEREAS, the Board is cognizant of the requirements for receiving such funds, and agrees to
comply with the OPRA Policy, as clarified at the Meeting on December 7, 2010, that the park
districts are prohibited from accumulating more than 3 Biennia (six years) of UNUSED funds.

WHEREAS, Section Il, paragraph 1A, of the Annual Agreement between ODOT and OPRA requires a
two-year list of priority projects for the Metroparks Program to be submitted to ODOT for
Department-wide posting and distribution. In order to comply with this provision, each Metropark
is required to submit their two-year list of priority projects to OPRA; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Park Commissioners of the Portage Park
District requests the designated allocation from the Ohio Park Districts Roadwork Fund along with
any remaining balance of funds in accordance with the following stipulations:

1. Funds can be used for materials and labor necessary for construction or reconstruction of
park drives, park roads, new or replacement bridges, park access roads and parking lots. The funds
also may be used for the purchase and hauling of materials for the improvement, repair and
maintenance of park drives, park roads, park access roads, and parking lots, and rental of labor and
equipment. Force account labor costs (charges by park district employees or associates) are
ineligible. Ineligible costs include bikeways and items such as shelter houses, wells, pumps,
restrooms facilities, park buildings, etc. All projects must be associated with public vehicular access
to be eligible for funding. Funds may be used for eligible construction costs, including construction
engineering (i.e., testing and inspection) of “LET” projects.

2. The Park District will pay all costs incurred over the appropriated allocation and, also, for all
costs associated with design, environmental studies and documents, and right-of-way activities.



Any deviation from the guidelines regarding environmental studies or roadway design requires the
written approval of ODOT.

3. Portage Park District has designated Christine Craycroft, Executive Director as the contact
person for the local arrangements and to sign all documentation on behalf of the Board of Park
Commissioners.

4. The following are priority projects eligible for ODOT funding over the next biennium:

e Towner’s Woods Park reservable site parking lot and drive at Ravenna Road
e Towner’'s Woods Park parking lot renovation

e The PORTAGE parking area and trailhead at Ravenna Road

e Kent Bog Park parking lot

Upon a motion by Ruchotzke and second by Orashan, the vote was as follows:

A. Orashan: Yes T. Hrdy: Yes C. Engelhart: Yes R. Ruchotzke: Yes K. Ruehr: Yes

I certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open
meeting on May 8, 2023.

7/

ch ristiy(é Cr%ycroft, Executive Director




